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ITEM NO.1:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 BUDGET (C.C.03-265)

CHAIR HOKAMA: .,. (gavel). .. Okay, good evening, this is Council's Budget and
Finance Committee. We are here to take your comments on the Fiscal Year
2005 Budget, which starts July 1, 2004 and ends on June 30, 2005. This
evening our colleague from Upcountry, Charmaine Tavares, will do the
introductions as well as call up those of you that will be testifying this evening.
So, Ms. Tavares, if you will please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Budget Chair Hokama, and of course, I will
introduce him first, Riki Hokama from Lanai, who is our Budget Chairperson.
Hold your applause until we are all done here. And I'll start with your left
representing East Maui, Bob Carroll; representing West Maui, Jo Anne Johnson;
from Kahului area, Joe Pontanilla; this side from Wailuku Dain Kane, our Council
Chair; Danny Mateo from Molokai; and Michael Molina who is our cousin over
there in Makawao, Paia, Haiku. Our Staff this evening, our Staff Attorney is
Richelle Kawasaki Lu, and our Secretary is Tammy Frias. We also have from the
Administration, Danny Agsalog, the Budget Director. I see some other various
folks from Administration, but this is our show so I am not going to introduce
them.
Okay. We're happy to be up here ... it let up a little bit on the rain side but I just,
you know, love driving through the clouds. It's been, been a while. Kind of feels
like winter. I'm going to call you up in the order that you signed up for testimony.
And please if everyone, first of all, can turn off any cell phones or put them to the
silent mode, and pagers, and then we will ask you to please do your remarks
within three minutes with a minute to conclude. If you feel that you really gotta
Portagee out, we'll give you another three minutes after everybody else has
testified. So with that we will start our testimony and ... the first person Betty
Delima will be followed by Leilani Magee .
. • .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY• ..
MS. DeLIMA: Good evening, Budget Chair-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, wait, not on. Press the little button.
MS. DELIMA: This button?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: There you go.
MS. DeLIMA: Good evening, Budget Chair, Council Members, ladies and gentlemen.
My name is Betty Delima. I represent the Kula Seniors. I am the President of
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the Kula Community Club. I also serve on the Board of Directors of MEO. I first
of all, I would like to say thank you for all you have done for MEO, and for the
seniors. We all know that without our projects and everything being put into the
budget that we would not have all the benefits that we do have. We're asking
that you again allow whatever MEO needs for their different programs, that you
would consider continuing in the budget, especially for us the buses, because
without the buses a lot of us could not go anywhere, whether it be shopping or
doctor or, or anywhere. And it's very, very important. On that I say thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Betty? Okay, our next speaker will
be Leilani Magee to be followed by Amy Shim.
MS. MAGEE: Hi. Leilani Magee, Kula Tennis and ... right here to your left we have
the architectural and engineering plans for the expansion of the tennis courts,
public tennis courts, which are just behind us. We've got two right now. We
have enough community and tennis players to have a battery of 20 courts, but
we are asking for two more . . . in the 2006 [sic] Budget, and if you can
see ... these are the existing courts ... (inaudible)-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) ...
MS. MAGEE: Okay, the existing courts are right there. The two, there's a plan in the ..
. plans have already been approved for two more ... gosh ... yeah, right there
and then expansion of parking and such. We were looking for a maximum of six
courts, but we're very grateful and appreciative that at least it's in the proposal for
six. I mean for two. I work with juniors, adults, and senior tennis players in the
community and, I, all of these different levels in the community would benefit
greatly from this expansion as a place for us to meet, and play, and continue in
the growth of the game. Already in Wailuku, Lahaina, Kahului, there's wonderful
tennis programs with a facility to match the number of players that are there. In
Kula, we're just grateful that we are on that path to, to making it. Okay, we have
some other wonderful, better speakers coming up.
MR. LAU: Members of the Council, I, I'm Henry Lau. I, I'm a retiree and I play, playa
lot of tennis. I'm here representing myself, my three grandchildren, who also play
tennis, and ten members of the Upcountry Makules Senior Tennis League. We
playa lot of tennis. We go to Kihei, Lahaina, Kaanapali, Wailuku. They all host
us as their, as, you know, competitors, but we don't have a, enough courts to
host them. So, we, we are homeless like. So whenever we play we have to
make believe we have four courts. So, it is sort of a disadvantage being not a
host. So, we enjoy tennis. We're getting old, but, you know, we'd like to have
more courts because we playa lot, and I know there are many people that also
enjoy tennis. And as you get older, you get impatient, you know, you no like to
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wait for the courts. So, please help us enjoy the rest of our golden years by
giving us more courts. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Henry? If not, thank you. Okay,
Amy Shim will be followed by Alan Lipson.
MS. SHIM: Hi. My name is Amy Shim. I'm here to speak on behalf of the Maui Arts
and Cultural Center "Can Do Program". I have been a volunteer at the MACC for
about five years, and have volunteered at the Can Do Programs. I have
personally seen how much enjoyment the children benefit from this program.
The Can Do Program encourages the children to express themselves through
music, dance, and art. The children participate in activities that support
interaction teamwork and positive development. I have seen them enter
sometimes nervous or shy and leave happy and a little more confident. In
today's troubled world, this program gives the children a place to develop a
positive view of life in the world. I would not donate my time if I did not believe
that this program will help the future of the children and development. If you
have any doubt about the value of this program, spend a few hours and see for
yourself, how much the children can appreciate Can Do and education programs
at the center. Supporting this program is the best investment we can make for
the future of the children and the community. Thank you for your time and
allowing me to speak on behalf of the children of this community and the MACC.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Amy? Okay, seeing none. She's
hoping there aren't any. Alan Lipson will be next followed by Wally Miyahira.
MR. LIPSON: My name is Alan-- Hi. Okay. My name is Alan Lipson. I represent the
passengers and myself on the MEO bus transportation. I don't know where to
start. It's just such a vital part of my life, and my colleagues who are seniors, to
get to our doctors, transportation, to go to the groceries. Without public
transportation, I think a lot of us would be just homebound, and relying on
relatives, and I'm just very thankful for the MEO's bus system, since we don't
have a per se of public transportation. So, I don't know what else to say. It's just
they speak for themselves. Sometimes when I'm not feeling well, and I am about
to go to the doctors, it's, it's the drivers that will say a joke and kind of lift my
spirits and make me feel good, and I think that's also important too. It's not just
the, the transportation. Okay, that's all.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Alan? If not, thank you, Alan. Wally
Miyahira to be followed by Jim Crowe.
MR. MIYAHIRA: Members of the Council and Council Chair. My name is Wallace
Miyahira. I live in Pukalani. I came before you many times in, in the past asking
for kokua for MEO and Kaunoa Senior Services. You have met our requests
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very gracefully, so I wish to thank you at this time for your past kokua. I'm also
asking same thing again over and over, and it's needless for me to mention how
important this bus transportation is. But, I'd like to mention one. Long time ago,
we didn't need bus transportation because someone from the grocery store use
to come to our home, take the orders, and then deliver the following day. Now
those services are gone today. The elder people have no way of getting their
services that we had without the help of MEO bus transportation. So, I'm asking
that you don't cut the funding that you had given us before. And also, I'd like to
plug for senior, I mean Kaunoa Senior Services Program because they have an
opportunity to have healthy lunch twice a week, but more than that, I see those
people when they get together, they pep up, and get younger. They talk, they
smile, play cards, and they converse, converse with one another, and seem to
solve their problems. So, rather than keep them at home and get into dementia, I
think it's a very nice program, to have lunch program. I'd like to thank you for
giving me the privilege to talk to you. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
followed by Colin Hanlon.

We thank you for coming.

Jim Crowe would be

MR. CROWE: Good evening. Thanks for being here. I'm Jim Crowe, Program Director
for MEO Youth Bank, and this is Andrea Feiteira, and this is one of my other
youth, Rod Ishii, nah, nah, nah. We talked about him being a youth, but he is
representing his daughter, who just couldn't make it. And Andrea is here
because we got rained out of our camping trip. So, she is kinda happy to be here
and kinda sad. And I, I want to say something about the camping trip. They
don't just camp. I think you, some of you know Youth Bank already. Young
people come to Youth Bank to learn. That's where we're, we're really unique.
As soon as they get there, bang we're teaching something, and it's to learn how
to work, and to learn how to earn. So when they go on a camping trip, it's not a
camping trip. It's a survival adventure trek. I had to have a list here. They
power walk, paddle, run a mile, then they do a little scavenger, then they swim,
and then they paddle some more, and then they hike. Now the, the technique is,
they are in small groups, and at each of these phases they all have to arrive at
that point before the whole group can start off again. What does that do? The
strongest help the weakest, or they can't keep going. So different kids have
strengths in different, different of these, different categories. So great lessons
learned, great lessons learned. For example, when they go to a beach, it's not
just a day at the beach. They learn water safety, and the oldest among them
begin to learn life guarding, get into that, and qualify to work at a County pool.
They take the whole thing. When they go to the beach, they just don't go to the
beach. What they--this is really cool--they break up in little groups, and they go
and talk to some tourists, and welcome them. They give them the aloha,
introduce themselves, and say, you know, what do you like about Maui and
things like that, and then they come back and report to the whole group. So it's
constant, constant learning. Very consistent. So what I am saying is that Youth

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 23, 2004 (Kula)

Bank is one bank where the County investment consistently pays off. So now we
have And rea to say a few words.
MS. FEITEIRA: Hello. My name is Andrea Feiteira and I'm in the MEO Youth Bank.
The MEO Youth Bank has helped me keep out of trouble and stay away from
drugs. We do social activities like cleaning fish ponds and other places. We go
to Hana, Kipahulu, Kahoolawe, Kahakuloa, and Kihei. One time we went on our
scavenger hunt around Wailuku. It was really fun. We had to go to different
buildings and get brochures, birth certificates, and applications. I really like the
MEO Youth Bank. It has helped me to grow as a person.
MR. CROWE: Okay, I have to introduce you again. Rodney is here because his
daughter cannot be in Youth Bank anymore. When she went there, we taught
her how to do a resume, and how to interview for a job. She's got a job. She
can't be in Youth Bank. She's working, and that's why she can't be here tonight.
Rodney's going to fill in.
MR. ISHII: Thank you. Okay. Hi. My name is Rodney Ishii. This program is a
stepping stone to show the youths how it is to work together with different types
of people, to work side by side, and to respect one another like the real world.
My daughter attended the Youth Bank and what a change I've seen in her. She
reacts and responds to situations in a thoughtful manner, meaning with love and
respect. She's working at Foodland Pukalani and has used the skills she has
learned from the Youth Bank in her job. Her self-respect and her confidence has
gone up and so has her grades in school. So, please support the MEO Youth
Bank so our kids have a stepping stone to start the road to young adulthood.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Jim or Andrea or Rod? Okay,
seeing none. Colin Hanlon from Boys & Girls Club of Maui will be followed by
Stacey Moniz.
MR. HANLON: Can I have my group up, too?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Sure. Colin Hanlon and group.
MR. HANLON: When you come up, I want you to introduce yourselves. I picked up
some of the speeches ... (inaudible) ... So, who wants to go first?
MS. KAWASAKI: Colin, has everybody signed up?
MR. HANLON: Everybody's, everybody's signed up. So ... (inaudible) ...
MR. T. PONTE: Okay. My name is Taylor Ponte. I go to Kalama Intermediate. I'm in
sixth grade. When I go to the Boys & Girls Club I attended the Passport to
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Manhood. I also took Smart Moves. It builds up leaders. The Youth Center, the
Youth Center also helps the teachers out. They know what to stay away from. I
did homework there too. It helped me understand more. If I didn't join the boys,
the club, I don't know what I'd do after school.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. C. PONTE: Hi, I'm Cole Ponte. And the reason I'm here today is I think that the
Boys & Girls Club should get money because they help you with activities, and
they help you do your homework, and at the club you can meet new friends, and
people will treat you with care, and they have discipline. If you're being bad or
you swear, they'll make you do pushups. They let you play pool and compete in
ping-pong, etc. The staff are nice and they give you good influences on kids and
they have a, a store that you can buy things to eat, and even on Friday nights
they go out of their way to make you dinner, and they give it out for free. So
that's why the country ... the club should keep on giving, the County should
keep on giving money to the center. The club has people you can talk to if you're
in trouble, and the clubs they have there to stay away from drugs, and other
things that can hurt you in your life. The people who go will have nowhere to go
after school. So give the staff the money they need to keep on giving the center
the people that wanna come. And that's all I have to say.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
MR. MURAMOTO: Hi. My name is Chase Muramoto and I go to the Boys & Girls Club
of MauL The center has helped me with my homework and kept me busy when
there's nothing to do at my house. There are two clubs that I have joined at the
Boys & Girls Club. One is Smart Moves. I have learned a lot from it and they
teach you how to make smart choices. The other one is Passport to Manhood. I
have learned manners and other stuff that you'll need to know when you grow
up.
MR. ROY: Hi. My name is Corry. My name is Corry Roy and I'm 13 years old. I've
been a member of the club for four years. I participated in club sports, teen
nights, and I was also part of the Boys & Girls Club of Maui's flag football league.
Our Upcountry team was the year's champions. I go to the club everyday. If the
club wasn't here for me, I would probably stay at home and do nothing. Thank
you for supporting the Upcountry Boys & Girls Club of Maui, and please support
us in the future. Mahalo.
MR. TREU: Okay. Hi. My name is Kalani Treu. I go King Kekaulike. I've been going
to the club about eight years, and then I like to go spear fishing and stuff. So if
you guys can, you can help us buy us diving gear and stuff like that. Okay, thank
you. Bye.
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MS. MacCUTCHEON: My name is Paula MacCutcheon and I'm 16 years old. I go to
King Kekaulike. I started going to the club when it was a youth center, but since
it's become part of the Boys & Girls Club of America, this facility has developed
into a much more efficient organization and meeting the needs of us, the children
who go there. Personally the club has helped me set and achieve short- as well
as long-term long goals. One of them was raising my G.P.A. It went from a 3.4
to 4.1 because I could go to the club everyday, and it was a safe place to study.
We have the things that I needed to do my homework, internet, computers,
printers, and I just wanted to say thank you for your generosity and support
towards the Upcountry Boys & Girls Club and I would immensely appreciate it if
you would continue supporting us. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. B. PONTE: Good evening. My name is Bill Ponte. I'm a participating parent in the
Boys Club, the Boys & Girls Club - Upcountry, Maui. I'm ex-military. I
understand what it is to have respect and honor, and in this program that they
have initiated the Passage to Manhood, I participated with the boys and the
leaders, and they have shown the children to be respectful and to show honor.
And I think that by that kind of ground support that they have for these children, it
really helps all the people in the community, including the teachers, and the
police department, and the parents. And I ask for your continued support of this
organization because I believe that the youth is a foundation of our country.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
MS. CURTIS: Good evening, Council members, ladies and gentlemen. My name is
Lynn Curtis, and I am the Vice President of the Governing Board of the Boys &
Girls Club of Maui. It's been an honor and a privilege to be affiliated with this
organization. I've watched it grow and flourish and accomplish many wonderful
things in our community. I want to thank you for your pass support and ask you
to please consider that, you know, currently there are 20,000 youth on the island
of MauL Of those, we have served 2,400, and if we are to increase those
numbers, expand our reach ... we really cannot do that without a budget that
reflects the rising costs of operations. It would be a ... an impact, a negative
impact on our communities if any of the clubs were to lose any staff pOSitions.
So, thank you and please consider our heartfelt youth comments. Thank you.
MR. NAGATA: Hi. My name is Brandon Nagata and I'm the Unit Director for the Boys
& Girls Club of Upcountry. Currently, we are at 365 members for the year, and
we're shooting for 400 for the total year, and I think this year we'll pass it and go
up to about 400, maybe 30, 40 kids. And that's real big for us 'cause we do
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service a lot kids there. I'd first like to start by thanking you guys all for, for
funding, funding us in the past, and I would like to ask you guys to continue to do
so in the future. We've got a lot of successful programs like our inter-club sports
leagues. We have a real successful spear fishing program. And this year we
even had a, our youth represent us as youth of the year for Maui, so she'll be
going to states to represent us. Like I said, we have a goal of 400 this year. We
do want to pass that. And the importance of our funding is that if we cut back on
funds, basically I can't do these programs for the kids, and without the funding I
lose staff, and without staff we won't have a place for the kids to be. So, I just
ask that you guys to support us continuously and thank you very much.
MR. HANLON: Committee Chair Hokama, Council members. My name is Colin
Hanlon. I'm the Executive Director with the Boys & Girls Club of MauL I'd like to
set a couple of things straight. The kids don't come to the club just to do their
homework. They have a lot of fun there. Nobody comes to do pushups and get
disciplined either. Regardless of what they said. I'm, I'm really concerned this
year. Last year we got cut across the board at our clubs. And even though we
did ... at the Boys & Girls Clubs, those youth centers that we run at Boys & Girls
Clubs have done the most to diversify their funding, and I think we got cut
because of that. I've had a couple of people come up and say that they wanted
to get involved with helping us fund, but if they give us the money, the County's
going to cut us back the same amount that they give us. That's a, that's really,
really scary for us because we are trying to diversify, but we're trying to let
people know that we'll be rewarded for diversifying our funds, not punished by
the County. I need to get that concept right out. The other thing is, is we're
going to be under a new, a new policy this year. It's called the RFP, the Request
for Proposal System at the youth center. This has us concerned because we,
I've been told to write a budget of $130,050 per site. That's what I'm supposed
to write at. That's quite a large cut per site from what, what I'm, what I'm getting
year. The cost of doing business is going up 20 percent for liability insurance, 15
percent for my health insurance ... for directors and offices, for auto insurance,
across the board between 15 percent and 20 percent. It's been going up, and
the, the pot of money that the youth centers are picking at has stayed the same
for four years running. I'd love to tell you what the solution is right now, and I, I
think the solution, quite frankly, is to raise the money from $1.3 to $1.5 million in
that pot of funds 'cause money does make a lot of the problems go away. This
year, I mean everybody has ... I'm, I'm going, I'm going to try to wrap up, but I
do want to say that each year I've, I've come before you and, and I know you are,
are posed with the, with the responsibility to prioritize. Everybody wants
everything and you guys need to prioritize. The State, the County, and the Feds
have all decided that the priority is youth prevention. I was at Duke Aiona's Ice
Summit. I've been involved with the Maui Focus NuL I'm on the planning
committee for the Comp Strategy. It's all the same. We're hitting the same
things and they're all saying the same things. Youth prevention is where the
dollar should be put. So, there's the priority, and that's what we do at the Boys &
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Girls Club. We're serving kids all over the island, specifically in Makawao, and if
we were to get what we're proposed to budget, I'm gonna be cutting two full-time
staff. Ninety percent of my budget is payroll, payroll tax and employee benefits.
The other stuff can't move. I can't work without insurance and stuff like that. So,
the immediate cuts happen to us, happen two full-time, two full-time people lose
their jobs in Upcountry, and the club will be able to open its doors, not run
programs, but just sit and monitor the building, and that's not where we want to
go back. We don't want to take the step back. We want to keep, continue to
grow at the Boys & Girls Club and serve more kids. This proposal keeps us at
about 54 percent of our budget coming from the County, which is down from four
years ago where we were about 98 percent. So, we continue to try to get that
grown too. Thanks for listening. Thanks for having us.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Colin? Okay. No, thank you, Colin.
And thank you kids. Next we have Stacey Moniz and she will be followed by Bill
Bates.
MS. MONIZ: Hello. I'm Stacey Moniz. I'm the Executive Director for Women Helping
Women, and I appreciate-CHAIR TAVARES: Hold on. Just let's the kids go back to wherever they're going.
MS. MONIZ: Easier to hear, yeah.
CHAIR TAVARES: Okay, Stacey. Thank you.
MS. MONIZ: Thanks, Charmaine. I appreciate, first of all, you're giving up a Tuesday
night. I'm going to testify and go watch American Idol, and I know you guys have
to tape it, but I appreciate that 'cause ... that just kind of shows how much you
guys have to give up and I ... late nights, missing the most popular show in
America. Anyway, I think that Boys & Girls Club is a hard act to follow. Working
in a domestic violence shelter, I can't, I don't have an access of clients who are
really anxious to come and speak and say, oh yeah, I am a resident of Women
Helping Women ... very, very difficult to have that happen, though we have
asked them to submit some written testimony, keeping their names confidential,
things like that. But I just kinda wanted to put it out there that really our clients
are our sisters and our aunties and our friends. They are people who vote, who
have a life, who, you know, do things like we do. That they really just ...
because of shame and societal issues are, have a hard time coming and
testifying on their own behalf, and that's our job. My staff ... where our titles are
advocates, and everyone from our children's program to myself is classified as
an advocate because that's what they need. The activities that the women at our
shelter do are things like apply for welfare, apply for food stamps, go to the
hospital, apply for restraining orders, go to court, testify in criminal trials. That's
the kind of activities we do. We don't have, thankfully nobody has to do
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push-ups at our shelter, but we do, that's the kind of stuff they're doing there,
doing really life things to get their lives back on track. And last time I was
testifying before you at County Chambers I didn't have exact statistics. So, I
thought I would bring some and I'll type this up and send them to you. At our
shelter in calendar year '03, we sheltered 149 women and 117 children. On
Maui, our restraining order program did 515 restraining orders. There are two
agencies on the island that prepare restraining orders. Ours did 515. On Lanai,
we did 15 restraining orders, on the island of Lanai. And we accompanied 487
people to court and kind of supported them through that process. Our hotline
received 11,733 calls for information, referrals, and of those 2,000 were true
crisis calls. I wanted to give you a few statistics from the Maui Police Department
because most of our clients that come to the shelter say they've never called the
police. And yet, last year there were 3,758 calls to the Maui Police Department.
So, it kind of says that and given that it's the most under, one of the most under
reported crimes, that there's a lot of battered women on our island, and on Lanai.
An interesting fact is that the youngest person that was arrested for abuse of a
family or household member was 13, and the oldest person was 73 arrested for
abuse of a family or household member. There were 561 cases of restraining
order violations.
And then, I know that I mentioned that part of it's Lanai. I want to bring my
half-time staff on Lanai up to full-time. And she is the only domestic violence
advocate on the island of Lanai. She gets paid for 20 hours a week. She is on
call 24 hours a day, seven days a week. If someone gets abused on Lanai, they
call her at home. The police call her at home. They bring the woman to her
house because Lanai is so small. They know where she lives. So, seven days a
week. I was there on a Tuesday. The Sunday before I got there she had four
crisis calls at her home on Sunday, so, from people in various crisis. So, to say
that we need full-time on Lanai is an understatement. The, the other dynamic of
Lanai is that if a woman wanted to leave the island and come to our safe shelter
on Maui because there is no shelter on Lanai, she can't do that if it's after 6:30 or
6:45 because there is no planes that are gonna leave and no boats that are
gonna leave. She's really stuck on the island. We've been really fortunate that
Lanai Company has helped us work on creating safe homes and on the island for
those situations And we do have a goal of creating a shelter on Lanai. I think I
talked to you a little bit about that the last time I was speaking to you. So, I
appreciate also your support, that I felt very much the support of the County for
the work that we do and at the last meeting where I was at I really felt like people
really understood what we were trying to do. I also know that it's rough to come
in halfway through the process and ask for money that's not designated out of
the budget. But I am going to continue to ask for that and ... and kind of show
up at all the Budget hearings and perhaps talk some, empower some women into
coming and speaking for themselves. Otherwise, we'll submit written testimony
from them as they're comfortable. So thanks so much for listening.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Stacey? Will you be giving us those
statistics that you just enumerated?
MS. MONIZ: Yeah, I'll write these up and maybe email them. Is that okay?
CHAIR TAVARES: Yeah, that'll be great.
MS. MONIZ: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Okay, Mr. Bill Bates up next and will be
followed by Jesica Madera.
MR. BATES: Good evening, Council members, and thank you for coming to Kula. I'll
be speaking on four areas of concerns. Today, I received a phone call, and I'm
representing Bob Johnson, who is the President of Pukalani Pensioners Senior
Club, and Bob, Bob has come before you many times before, and to make it
short he always asks for continued support for MEO's transportation. I'd also like
to acknowledge the seniors here that were and some have already gone back to
check out the, the American Idol on TV. But they stuck around as long as they
could, and I appreciate the seniors for coming out. Thank you.
I'd like to speak on behalf of the Maui Community Work Day. Jan Dapitan is, is
asking for more dollars. Most of you know that Stewart has, no longer is there
and has left, and he was doing about a position of two people. So she's
concerned about filling that void. I also personally clean the highway in two
areas here, and the, the County roads, and the, and the lower Haleakala
Highway, and the Lower Kula Highway. And there's certainly is a need to, to get
the volunteer help there. So, it's a worthwhile program. There's certainly a lot of
cigarette butts over there and plastiC ribbons and stuff, and the litter program
does not work. Tell me when, when a person gets fined. You never see it or
read about it in the papers. So, it's almost non-existent. So, please kokua Jan's
program.
I also support the tennis courts here. If you can switch the money around and
move it off of '05 to ... '06 to '05, that would be greatly appreciated.
And then the last thing here is with all the rain that we have received there's
plenty pukas in the road. And you can certainly know that that highway budget is
not going to withstand all, all the pilikia that's come with the rain. Thank you very
much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond.

Jesica Madera and will be followed by
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MS. MADERA: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen. Thank you for being here to
listen to us. My name is Jesica Madera and I'm a head start parent. And
Ms. Gregory here is a also a head start parent, and we'd like to thank you for
supporting our program, for our summer program, and for extending our hours in
our centers. The children really appreciate it. I have a graduate and a current,
and they, they really love it. Sophia's just turned five about three months ago,
and she reads, and she can write simple sentences, simple words, and she can
read words already. So that, that's all because of head start. Damien, who was
a special ed, he just recently graduated from special ed. So, he's no longer inw
that anymore and that's also because of head start. And so we would just like to
also ask you to please continue supporting us. By getting these kids ready for
kindergarten, it really helps them to learn and to build their self esteem so that
they can get excited about school, and do well in school. And we'd like to thank
you again for supporting us and please keep on supporting us. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who is the other person with you?
MS. MADERA: Oh, this is our family advocate. She's works for MEO-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. MADERA: --and ... but she wanted us to speak.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, are you gonna say anything?
MS. MADERA: Would you like to?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Go ahead.
MS. ROJAS: I didn't have anything prepared. I was ... I didn't know I could because I
was an employee-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
MS. ROJAS: But we just want to--I don't know--I'd just thank you. I've worked in head
start in other states and it's a great program, and I realize here that you guys are
very crucial in extending hours for working parents. I know our program would
end at noon if not. So that helps out a lot. Same with summer. Working parents
don't get off during the summer. And so thank you for extending our hours and
help by continuing them.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And what is your name, please?
MS. ROJAS: Natalie Rojas.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Natalie.
MS. ROJAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Lisa will be followed by Janet Allan.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha, Council members, and community. My
name is Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond. I'm the Executive Director of the Maui Nui
Botanical Gardens. I'm passing some pictures, since pictures, you know, are
worth a thousand words, and I only have three minutes. If you get a chance to
look at those, you might learn some more things that we're doing at the garden.
Maui Nui Botanical Gardens has been operational for two years and eight
months. In the short time, our partnership with the County has resulted in the
blossoming of a community botanical garden, which has provided education,
conservation, Hawaiian cultural preservation, and beautification which has
affected every island in this County. At the gardens, we're working to save a
number of critically endangered species and are partnering on several restoration
projects, such as Puu 0 Kali and, most recently the Maui Coastal Land Trust
Waihee Dune System. In addition to the restoration of the gardens, which is
gaining statewide attention, the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens has provided job
training for 15 young men and women. We partner with MEO AmeriCorps and
the Youth Bank programs, Alu Like, and Queen Liliuokalani Children's Center.
We work regularly with the Maui Community College Service Learning Students,
and this semester we have a dozen MCC students working with us. We also
work weekly with the Baldwin High School Alternative Learning Center, and we
have a weekly volunteer group which helps to keep the garden beautiful. That's
our Wednesday morning Weed & Pot Club. Last year the volunteer hours
provided an equivalent of one full-time position at the gardens.
Our Earth Day and Arbor Day events have brought together many local
non-profits and government organizations, and have promoted further partnering
within these groups, and this helps to stretch our limited island resources. In the
last few years, we have given away over 3,000 native plants to our community.
This has resulted in a recent, in an enrichment of our island landscape. Many of
our plants have specific historical Hawaiian cultural uses and are now being
incorporated into cultural events and practices. I believe those Council members
that have had an opportunity to tour the gardens were favorably impressed with
what we have accomplished so far. And I'm sorry that not all of the Council
members have had, had a chance to visit. We're working with so many different
projects and programs that there's too much to explain in these three minutes.
You really have to experience the gardens for yourself. If you have not found
time to visit personally, I encourage you to visit. Still come down any time or ask
Councilmembers Kane, Pontanilla and Molina, who most recently were able to
come and visit. And, of course, Councilmember Johnson and Carroll have come
on and off for the last few years. They stop by regularly. During the budget cuts
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last year the funding that ... or due to the budget cuts of last year the funding
received, we received in this current budget, we used up last month. We have
several grant proposals out and are hopeful that they will be fruitful, but we are
walking a very fine line financially. However, since we took over management of
the gardens, we have more than doubled every dollar that the County funding
that has been dedicated to our project. Now, in order for the garden to move
forward and gain financial independence we would like to secure a long-term
lease for the site. The long-term lease will enable the gardens to establish an
endowment fund and start a capital campaign to develop the necessary
infrastructure. We have talked to the Mayor about our situation and with his
support hope to start the process as soon as possible. We ask that the Council
members continue to support the important work of my dedicated and hard
working staff and volunteers are doing. I hope that, that you will work with us
toward our goal of making Maui Nui Botanical Gardens a major contributor to
endangered species conservation, community education center, visitor attraction,
and a Hawaiian cultural resource. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Lisa. Any questions for Lisa? Thanks very
much. Janet Allan is up next and will be followed by Alex Franco.
MS. ALLAN: Aloha, Council members. I'm Janet Allan. I'm President of the Board of
the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. We really do appreciate the Council members
who were able to visit the gardens, and I think that when they did come, perhaps
they got an inkling of the enormity of our obligations there. We're really saving
native, endangered native Hawaiian plants. And that is the overall. That says
the main, the main path that we and the main mission of the gardens. There are
some plants and trees there that are very close to extinction, and we have two or
three species in our nurseries that only have one or two individuals of that
species left in the wild. We're going to save them. We're hoping to save them
forever for future generations of Mauians as well as the world. Even Kew
Gardens in London, in England, is very, is very interested in what we're doing
here. It's a huge undertaking, and I don't know that we even realized that all of
this would be of, part of our mission when we took over and how important the
funding is of what we do, for what we do. Another important obligation we have
is, is to educate the people of Maui, and the State, on the importance of planting
and restoring native plants by making them available, either free at our
annual ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... of a way where this last year we gave away
over a thousand different kinds of native trees, or we give them, we sell them at
low cost from our ever-expanding nurseries four times a year when we have our
native plant sales, and that also helps fund us. We also have lectures at least
once a month, usually with our Weed & Pot Club, but everyone is invited. And,
we do cultural classes, and as well as horticultural topics that are given in the
classes, as well as the lectures. We think that we're doing a lot more than we
thought we were going to be doing when we took on this project, and we know
that it's going to get even more important as years go by, and more people move
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to Maui, and take away some of the native places. So, it's going to be very
important that we, we save the plants that need saving. Thank you very much for
your past help and we hope that you'll give us as much or more later. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Alex Franco and Alex will be followed by
Tony Durso.
MR. FRANCO: Hello, Council members. Thank you for coming here today. My name
is Alex Franco. I'm with, I'm with the Maui Cattlemen's Association. And our
President Tony Durso, which we thought was going before me, has a more
formal request, that I'll allow him to do later. But basically the cattle industry here
on Maui has basically relied on the, the crop by-products to feed, to feed our
cattle through our feed yards. We're, we're the only island in, in the State that
basically feed cattle. The rest, the rest of the islands doesn't have in any feed
yards and on, on this island we have three major feed yards that basically feed
cattle and all of them are involved in developing a, a market for, for local cattle
here, instead of shipping our cattle off to the mainland. And we're in the, we're in
this crossroads right now as far as market development and what has happened
is our, our major feed source has been pineapple, pineapple skins, which we turn
into pineapple silage. And with the Maui Land & Pine reducing their canning
operation and increasing their fresh fruit operation, this is decreasing that source
of feed for, for the various feed operations here, here on the island. And
therefore, what we are, are looking for is other, other sources of feed and to be
economical here we would, we would need to utilize the crop by, by-product.
And what basically is available at, at this time but there's a lot of work that needs
to be done is we are, we are looking or investigating the possibility of utilizing
cane tops, which can be ensiled and, and used as, as cattle feed. Presently
HC&S is presently harvesting about a thousand acres of seed cane, of which
those tops are, are basically lodged on the ground after harvesting. And, and it
does have some problems with the re-growth of the new crop. But we're looking
at the possibility of trying to harvest this crop that we can, we can utilize to, to
supply the feed yards here on the island, and also to be utilized to aid us during
droughts. I mean this has been a wonderful year, but as you all remember, you
know, we came out of a four to five year drought period. And we, the ranchers
here on the island rely quite heavily on the pineapple silage to pull, pull them
through. So based on that, and I'd also like to thank you for your support in the
past with, with the Cattlemen's Association and the cattle industry. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Tony Durso and Tony will be followed by
Warren Watanabe.
MR. DURSO: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen. I say this each year that I stand
before you, I do not envy your task. Whether it's the Women's Shelter, the, the
intervention for the youth, or it's agriculture, or it's native plants, it's an incredibly
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complex job and I, I get to throw three logs on the fire tonight. I'm here to follow
up Alex but primarily to talk about three budget concerns, or three concerns that
all have budget involvement.
It's the Maui County Farm Bureau grant, which I ask you to support. Most
definitely with what's going on in agriculture, the needs across the country, and in
the State and in the County, it's incredibly important that we work to foster a
strong agricultural community. And the only way to do that is to make it
economically viable. The Maui County Farm Bureau is dedicated to that process
and without your support it will be unable to continue to do what it is endeavoring
to do.
The second thing that I would like to talk to you tonight about is the cane top
utilization that Alex referred to. Basically what's going on is as, as part of that
overall effort of the Maui's agricultural community, the, the cattle industry is really
pledged to taking back as much as the local market as it can be, as it can. This,
this has issues of, of food security. It has issues of economic viability for, and it
has issues of land preservation. Most of you know that the, the large ranches
and the small ranches combined total over 100,000 acres on MauL It's a huge
amount of land and if we can keep that in pasture, we can keep that managed
properly under the grazing practices that we've adopted. Then we can do good
things for the environment, as well as be economically viable. That's what we're
all hoping for. What Alex referred to is the lost of feed and consequently HC&S,
and that's the letter that Mae Nakahata drafted on, on my request and is
distributing to you now. Basically that says that HC&S will give us a feed source
for free, but they're not gonna, they're not gonna provide us with the equipment
to take it off their property. That would be asking for too much. So in some way
what we're asking for is you to help us with the process of taking that free feed
source off the property. You folks have repeatedly helped us in the past, the
cattle industry in the past, and most recently have made very strong overtures
expressing support for the cattle industry, baSically asking what is our greatest
need. Okay. Well, unfortunately we have many, but certainly the lack of feed
source is the top of the list. So, the bottom line is that there is a plan of action,
and that involves harvesting those cane tops, and doing it in the most economical
way. The approximate need we've estimated, and this is only a ball park figure
because really we've been exploring the issue, but have not, the overture for
offering support was so recent that we were like, oh, the County very definitely
wants to help us in this regard. Let's see if we can, if we can step up to the plate
and, and give them an answer. And we're talking about approximately $250,000
in equipment, purchases, and design, okay, as well as research into the product
itself. The one thing I do want to stress, okay, is that this is an industry wide
demand. At a recent Cattlemen's Association meeting, we asked for signups for
the various ranchers: Harry Cambra; Rollin Olson from the Big Island offered his
support; Eddie
; John Powley from CTAHR; Alex Franco from Kaupo;
William Jacintho and
Rodrigues, a small producer; Brendan
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Balthazar, another small producer; Jerry Sakugawa, another producer; Sumner
Erdman, Ulupalakua Ranch. All the ranches that are involved in the industry, as
Alex said, are concerned, are very concerned about this and we need to take
action.
My last issue which is one that you see me most often for is that of fireweed. On
one side we're trying to find a feed source that we can give the cattle in the feed
lot, and on the other side we're trying to protect the feed source in the pasture.
The fireweed continues to expand at an alarming rate, and as Alex mentioned,
we are at a crossroad when it comes to feed in the feed yard. Well, we're also at
a crossroad when it comes to controlling fireweed in the pastures. And the basic
issue there is you've given us a great support in the past, about $50,000 a year,
which we've matched in volunteer time and other resources. But it's become
clear that that is inadequate. No fault on your part. Okay, basically we're dealing
with a weed that we didn't know how to control. Mark Redeker is here tonight
from Mid Pacific Pest Control, who's been the man in the field, and has got the
most groundbreaking information. He's become in some ways I would guess the
world expert at this point because we have people from New Zealand calling us,
and Australia calling us, which is where the problem originated. So, we're
actually at the forefront of this. It's not actually an enviable position. I'm gonna
let Mark talk more specifically about that, but please understand that the fireweed
problem is, is, is very serious as well.
I did want to mention one thing William Jacintho wrote and he asked me to read.
It's not only a large stock industry problem. If this weed gets out of control, we
will have more problems in agriculture than we think. Imagine cleaning flowers to
be shipped out with those millions of seeds. Imagine shipping certified plants
and foliage to other countries with seeds in the pot and plant pockets. I don't
think the receivers would appreciate that kind of contamination to their countries.
This could even shut down our export markets, just like the frogs. Talk to any
protea grower and you know what happens if you're infected, you, you try to send
out infected plants. That happens in Japan. Okay, and we all know from the
experience with the fruit fly.
Like I said, three logs on your fire. I apologize for that and I thank you for your
consideration. I'd be happy to answer any questions.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Tony? Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Hi, Tony. I just, my question is in regard to one of the
comments that you made about because the industry in terms of the cattle
industry all, all together, you mentioned somebody on the Big Island. Okay, now
when I'm looking at this because we're, we're not looking at this as a State, we're
looking at County funding, and I realize it's statewide. Are the other counties
also going to do what we're doing in helping address the problem?
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MR. DURSO: I can't answer that question. I, I don't know the answer to that. I know
that the cattle industry across the State is concerned about it, particularly on the
Big Island. They're looking at aerial spraying. They have a lUxury of doing that.
Really on Maui we don't because we have, while we have the open space,
oftentimes there's other native plants mixed throughout that we can't target.
When I mentioned the, the gentleman from the Big Island, well he's, he's pledged
to volunteer his support in the effort and that's why that name was referred to.
But as far as working to control it on the Big Island, they are under, they are
using integrated grazing practices, they're using herbicide management, many of
the large ranches are. It's under control on Kauai. It has yet to appear on Oahu,
and those are where the other large cattle operations are.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The other question I had, I got a call from someone
who had horses. Now, it's a small farm. She was very concerned because it's
costing them just a fortune to pay for all of this, I guess, containment and it still
keeps ... the fireweed seeds keep coming onto her property. So for the small
farmer I realize you're looking at this in terms of cattle. She's looking at this in
terms of horses.
MR. DURSO: No, and I'm, I'm sorry if I gave you that impression. We're looking at it as
any pasture, large stock operations would be affected by this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and so you would be working with the small
farmers-MR. DURSO: Oh my God, yes-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --as well? Okay.
MR. DURSO: Sorry. Yes, absolutely. We're, we're talking from the large ranches,
whether they're cattle, goat, you name it. Anyone who's got fireweed in their
pasture, or anyone who's got fireweed in their front lawn we'd want them to
cooperate with the program. We'd want to work to educate them to cooperate
with us.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Would ... pigs also be impacted by this or do they
have any-MR. DURSO: Generally not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
industry. How about goats?

So it would just be your horse and cattle
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MR. DURSO: Yes, actually goats can be a weapon in the, in the war if you will because
they (inaudible), you can use goats and sheep to actually proceed cattle through
a pasture that's infected with fire weed, and they can actually help manage it. So
that's why I mentioned we're looking at integrated, integrated grazing techniques,
which use a variety of species. We are hoping to actually bring a specialist here
in the summer, but right now that doesn't look like it might happen.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And those, they don't have a toxicity reaction to the
fireweed?
MR. DURSO: They do, but they're much better able to handle it than cattle and horses
are.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. DURSO: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any further questions, Members? Thank you.
MR. DURSO: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Warren Watanabe is up next and will be followed by
Emily Haines with a number of students.
MR. WATANABE: Good evening, Chairman, Budget Chair Hokama and Members of
the Committee. I'm Warren Watanabe, President of the Maui County Farm
Bureau, and we again ask for support of our grant request. And our grant does
consist of several other commodity groups that, which are part of our total
package. At this time, but I would like to focus on agriculture on Maui, in Maui in
general. Agriculture here is in a critical stage. The farmers face numerous
problems and, you know, at times it can be overwhelming. However, when I talk
about a total package, what I'm talking about is land, water and, you know,
market development. And here at Farm Bureau we work closely with County
government, State government, and the Federal government. As you know, we
are working on our dual line project. We went before the Legislature again for
funding. It appears chances are good we will get that funding also. And we're
also looking for more Federal funding. But in addition to that since the Water
Department is now back under the County's jurisdiction, I, you know, I, I, ... as
part of the industry request that, you know, you look at additional storage. For
the farmers and ranchers water availability is a big problem. And, and, you
know, even though we are having a lot of rain, we just went through about four or
five years of drought.
On the issue of land, again at the Legislature, we are looking at redesignating,
redesignating agricultural lands statewide.
And again, when it comes to
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implementation, it'll be coming down to the County Planning Departments to
basically come up with the designation of the lands, and identifying, and mapping
it out for the counties.
As far as market development, as you know, we work, work closely with the
Office of Economic Development. The Mayor has appointed, you know, as you
know Monnie Gay is our Ag Coordinator. However, you know, if, if this County is
to take agriculture seriously and, you know, the industry is totally behind that, but
I think we need to get the whole community behind that effort and lot of it may, it
starts, it starts with Council and the Mayor. And so I request and ask for your
support. As far as ... and again that takes funding and I ask that, you know, in
order to have agriculture become a success, you know these departments:
Water Department, Planning Department, Office of Economic Development; they
all need that support and if not the industry will die, quite frankly. And we need
that support. We, we do look for State assistance, Federal assistance, but again,
you know, the County has to also kick in. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Warren? Thank you, Warren. We
have Emily Harris [sic] up next with Krista Scott, John Pagan, and Gabe
Yanagihara.
MS. HAINES: Good evening. My name is Emily Haines, and I'm a teacher at King
Kekaulike High School. The students will speak after me, I guess. I'm here to
speak on behalf of Women in Technology, Maui Economic Development Board,
and to thank you for your continued support.
I'm the facilitator of the
Environmental and Spatial Technology Lab at King Kekaulike, which is the EAST
Lab, which you may have heard of, where students engage in community based
projects that help, help their community and use very advanced technology. Two
weeks ago, our labs traveled to Sacramento to the Western Regional
Conference, where we were one of four labs that received a founder'S award.
This award was given to labs that showed community involvement, collaboration,
integration of technology, and student growth. It was an honor to receive such
an award and without your support it wouldn't have been possible.
I'm also, on a separate note, an advisor for the Future Scientists and Engineers
of America Club at King Kekaulike High School. This club is funded by Women
in Technology. And this year, we did something a little bit different ... the
Botball Project. It was basically a competition between schools from the State of
Hawaii. It was the first time that it's ever been held here. And the goal that is for
students to design autonomous robots, so no remote controls. They have to do
everything on their own. So, they designed, programmed these robots to
compete against other teams doing specific tasks. It was held last weekend on
Oahu, and we placed eighth out of twenty-two schools. So, we were very happy.
We were hoping not just to come in last. So, we did much better than expected.
But without the support of Women in Technology and the University of Hawaii's
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Institute for Astronomy this wouldn't have been possible. So, I would like to
thank you for your continued support for programs that are helping Maui youth.
Thank you.
MR. YANAGIHARA: Okay, I'd like to start off by thanking you for your past support in
funding EAST. EAST has been proven to be a positive influence on students in
their communities nationwide. My name is Gabriel Yanagihara. I'm a freshmen
at King Kekaulike High School and have been in EAST since August of last year.
I'm presently working on two projects that use technology to benefit the
community. It's the underlying basis of EAST, which is to use technology in
projects that benefit the community. My first project involves using computer
graphic capabilities to design a poster for student based anti-smoking program
called "Kick Butts Day". My second project is centered on the invasive insect
called the "Argentine Ant", which you guys know is in Kula right now. Like many
invasive species there's a potential for ecological harm. We're involving all the
biology classes to help collect ants, classify them, and map out where the
Argentine Ant has spread using computer mapping programming. This data can
be used for control or eradication program. This is just two of the many projects
that EAST students like myself are doing. I'm getting firsthand experience in the
use of technology that helps the community. The EAST experience, not only
teaches me high tech skills, but more importantly teaches me to think about
helping others. It may come to pass that graduates of the EAST programs will
prove instrumental to finding solutions to some of the many problems that face,
face our County, our State, and our country. Thank you for your time, and I hope
that you continue to fund this exceptional program.
MR. PAGAN: My name is Cisco Pagan. I'm a senior at King Kekaulike High School,
and I'm just here to basically thank you guys for your continuous support of our
EAST program at our school. It's my third year in EAST. I've been in EAST ever
since I was a sophomore and it's not because I failed three times. It's just 'cause
it is a continuous course that you can keep taking. And basically by being in
EAST, I've been exposed to a lot of technology that I would not have been
exposed to, and I was fortunate enough last year to go to the EAST Conference
in Sacramento. And while there, we presented a project that I worked on which
was creating a virtual tour for the Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar Company, and
that's going to be used on their website. So, basically by doing that I learned a
lot of like organization skills, public speaking, because we had to present our
project while at Sacramento for the judges, and like leadership skills. I know it
sounds corny, but yeah leadership skills that have helped me in the last three
years, and also will help me in the future when I go off to college. So, I'd just like
to thank you for your continuous support of the EAST program and I hope it
doesn't end. Thanks.
MS. SCOTT: Hello. My name is Krista Scott. I'm a senior at King Kekaulike High
School. This is my second year in the EAST program. I want to thank you for
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your continued support. With the EAST class, I've been able to do two projects.
The first was one called "Evact Plan", and what I did was I mapped all of the
emergency evacuations sites on Maui with the global positioning system, or
GPS. Then I used Arc View software to create maps and create a web page
available to the public so that they know where to go in case of an emergency
evacuation. This year I'm working on a project called "Know the Vote 2004", and
my passion is to get as many registered voters out there. And what I'm doing is
I'm creating a website, which has information on voter registration, on what you
need to do to become a registered voter. What I'm also doing is I'm mapping,
also using the global positioning system, each of the voter sites, and I'm
constructing a website to give this information to the public, trying to get as many
voters out there in the 2004 election. In addition, I'm also a voter, a deputy voter
registrar, and I'm continuing to do that, as well with my project, and just trying to
get as many voters out there so that we have a better voter turn out in
November. So, thank you very much for supporting EAST.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you and since nobody would like to follow that
act, we're gonna take a break, and we'll come back at 7:30 p.m. Thank you,
recess. '" (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

7:24 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:32 p.m.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ., .(gavel) . .. Thank you. At this time, we're gonna
have Nicholas Wright and Makena Wright come and testify. Just state your
name before you start.
MR. WRIGHT: Hi. I'm Nicholas and I'm in fourth grade at Kula School.
MS. WRIGHT: And I'm Makena Wright and I'm in third grade at Kula School.
MR. WRIGHT: I'm here because I want, I want to continue the support for the Maui Arts
& Cultural Center because the Maui Arts & Cultural is a very important place
because it puts on great shows, and it, it gives candy to each of the schools, and
that's really fun. And the arts are, are a really important thing because if, if we
didn't have the arts, we wouldn't know about our past generations. The way we
know is through the arts and through the artifacts that we find. And I want to
continue the support for the Maui Arts & Cultural Center because it's a really, it's
a place that most people love, and it's just a great place. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Good job.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I thought she was going to speak, too. Thank you
very much. At this time, we'll have Karolyn Mossman from the Kula Community
Association, and Karolyn will be followed by Mae McCarter.
MS. MOSSMAN: Hi. I'm Karolyn Mossman and I'm President of the Kula Community
Association. Dick Mayer is also going to be testifying with me, so you can cross
his sheet up later on. We won't let him do it twice. First of all, I would like to
thank you for coming out here and there's some projects that we've had in the
past that you've been very supportive of, and we want to mention them and thank
you for them. Along this road right out here, there was a dangerous walkway
area, and we're now seeing the new sidewalk coming in. So, we're very glad to
see that in progress. We're, we have had deteriorating roads and the bridge
area at the Pulehu area road, and we understand that that's supposed to be in
progress although we're a little concerned, we're hoping that that money is going
to be there. We're hearing that it's being delayed. Funding isn't going through,
but we hope to see that continue. We're also very appreciative of, especially
Councilman Kane, who has helped get the Federal grant money to help us with
the lead in the water supply situation. And we need continued support to get that
Kula ambulance here. We understand that there still might be some hold ups on
that. We really want to get that Kula ambulance, 24-hour ambulance service.
And also we're very glad about the timely consideration of the passage of Bill 84.
We'd like to see that implemented quickly, and we really hope that you are
careful in how you choose people to be on those committees.
So,
we're ... that's such an important process. So very much I want to thank you
first of all, and then we'll kind of take turns going through our list of things we
want to see. Watch out, Dick, this slips.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much. Good evening. What we did is up here in Kula,
we polled our community members at the community meetings on several
occasions, and so I'll give you the results of that poll later on. But the things we
have here, many of them came up in these meetings and were suggested by
members of the community.
The ambulance service, certainly we need
continued support for that. And in particular there's a piece of land, which you
may not be aware of, right across the street from the Kula Fire Station. It's 1
acre approximate parcel of land that could serve as the base for the ambulance
up here, or for some general public safety, even a police substation at some
future date. But I wanted to make, make sure you're aware of that. It was a
remnant left over when they made the, the Kula Park. As far as County and
district planning goes, as Karolyn said, we're hoping that Bill 84 gets
implemented quickly, and that you give support to the Planning Department to do
all the various jobs that they need to do. They've made requests for additional
personnel. They're several planners short as you're well aware. We hope that
you'll put those planners to work, get, get the positions added to the Department,
as well as the existing positions filled.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 23, 2004 (Kula)

MS MOSSMAN: Okay, and, and while we see the sidewalks going in down here, we
are concerned about having appropriate sidewalks and pedestrian walkways,
especially along the King Kekaulike High School area, around in that area. It's
very dangerous for the kids that are walking alongside the road, and we really
would like to see appropriate crosswalks and sidewalks and so forth.
The water supply and distribution. We need support, and to give priority to
agriculture, and to Hawaiian homes, over existing and new residential needs.
That has been a long time position of this Association, and we want to see that.
We're seeing lots of construction building and then there's not adequate money
for the agriculture, I mean water for the agriculture and Hawaiian Home Land
needs. We need capital support as well for source development. Always seems
to be an area that we need to continue.
And the next one has been a long time priority for the Kula Community
Association. At one time, we had a police officer in the Kula community. That
has been vacant or not filled for a very long time. And we have found that our
community really does need this position. We would really like to see this back.
We've been told we're sharing with Pukalani, Makawao, and ... he's not here.
We don't get police service unless there's a major incident happening and so we
really need to have. And we found that it really did help us a lot to have
somebody in the community here and crime really did improve ... oh, crime went
down.
MR. MAYER: ... (chuckle) . .. More, more crime, right. On that last one, and just, just
to put into perspective the population of Kula is approximately what Molokai's is,
and you know how many police officers you have over there. So that, that gives
you, I'm trying to give you a number that, that makes it comparable when we
don't have a community police officer here in the area that you'll know. With
regards to road improvements, we mentioned Pulehu. We hope that continues
and gets improved. The intersection where Pulehu and Omaopio meet, Kimo
Drive is one whose, which is deteriorating, it gets very heavy traffic, and this
recent rains have deteriorated a number of the roads, and we hope that the
Upcountry department gets its funding.
Parks. Right next to us here is the, the tennis courts and the, and we're hoping
that you'll move the, the funding for that tennis courts from the, the more distant
budget into the 2005 Fiscal Year Budget. And small things like installing
benches here at the community center, people who need to get picked up, and
they're waiting here long time, sometimes without any place to even sit down
outside this building. There's been a trails and bikeway plan. We have on Maui
gotten to talking about the coastline so much as coastal lands that are so
precious to us all. But we also have to make sure that we, we keep the inland
areas also up to, up to snuff, and make sure that the trails and parkways in the
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Upcountry area, throughout the Upcountry region get built. We now have a plan.
We're hoping that rights-of-way get purchased and that plans get developed.
MS. KAWASAKI: Six minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, got two more left.
MS. MOSSMAN: Okay, we're almost done. Hawaiian Home Lands ... we continue
coordination and planning between the County and the State agencies on the
Hawaiian home properties. And also this is kind of a new idea we're, we're
throwing at you. We want you to consider County housing, affordable housing
for County employees, especially for many of those positions where we seem to
not be able to find people because they can't afford to live here. So maybe we
need to consider County housing for affordable housing for, for employees.
MR. MAYER: Sort of like the old DOE schools, which are in remote areas that recruit
people in those areas. Abandoned vehicles came up many times in our
discussions. I, I was surprised how often it came up. A suggestion I'd like to
throw out to you is the possibility of assessing a fee to every car that comes on
the island. I would say about 150. That's just a, a guess. It could be more or
less. That if I were to sell that car, but I paid that fee when I sold it, I could
expect the next person to give that 150 back-MS. KAWASAKI: Seven minutes.
MR. MAYER: --and the final owner of the car will get that money when they turn it in. It
would be a way of getting that. The last thing, senior housing and long-term
care. This is a plan that I think that all of us need to have on this island. Where
will the seniors live and that's for all the various levels of needs, everything from
those who are healthy seniors to assisted living, Alzheimer's, long-term care, etc.
And the last item, I want to mention to all of you in Kula is our election forums,
which I hope all of you will be able to attend. I'll give you two dates that you may
want to put down, August 11 and October 7. Those are the two dates that we're
gonna have, August 11, a Wednesday, and October 7, a Thursday. And I thank
you for coming and I hope you'll come back for those meetings.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Dick. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Any questions? I have one for the
Parks Director. On one of the items of the Kula Community Association, it
was ... on the back page, Park Implementation and Planning. It says for
seniors, install a bench at the Kula Community Center. We no have to wait until
next, huh, Glen?
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MR. CORREA (from the audience): We can put two.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You're gonna put two?
MR. CORREA (from the audience): ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And you heard it from the Director.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. You heard it from the Director. Yes.
Thank you. Okay, Mae McCarter and Mae will be followed by Anders Lyons.
MS. McCARTER: Good evening and thank you very much for the time that you allotted
to all of us. I represent the Community Work Day Program and the Keep
America Beautiful. It's an organization that has been and you people have
supported us since 1983. That's greatly appreciated and hope for your continued
support. You're ... the Community Work Day Program continues to be highly
cost effective organization by extremely good leveraging. Jan Dapitan has been
doing a terrific job with getting in-kind and all that sort of good stuff. And that all
helps. We have five major programs throughout the year. May 1st is the next
clean up. So ask your neighbors to come out and volunteer. Last year, we had
5,000 volunteers come out and pick up garbage, and Lord knows the
refrigerators, and the stoves, and the mattresses, and what to do about the
derelict cars. If somebody has a real good idea, we'd certainly be willing to
listen. The, these 5,000 volunteers donated 27,786 hours of volunteer time of
their own, on their own accord. So obviously the community wants to keep it
good and clean. We did lose Stewart, and so Jan is having to do a lot of double
time work. It was sad that he decided to leave, but the fact is he's leaving, and
so volunteers are trying to step up for ... to kind of try to cover his work. And
frankly, we're not going to be able to quite do it, but we're working hard at it, and
including any calls that come in from Kula. Since I live up here, I pick up the calls
and listen to people. And, and unfortunately these refrigerators and stoves and
mattresses get dropped off at midnight, so there's no way of finding out who they
are. But nevertheless, it is being picked up by volunteers eventually, and I do
ask for your continued support because it is a very fine program. And the monies
that you don't give to this program, you're getting the best bang for the dollar
because these volunteers are happy to come out and pick up the garbage. So, I
ask for your continued support. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thanks, Mae. Thank you, Mae. Anders Lyons to be
followed by James Coon.
MR. LYONS: Aloha, Chairman Hokama and Committee Members. Great to see you
again. I see you're all smiling now. We'll see what happens in the next couple of
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weeks. I'm not one to be brief, but I will be brief tonight. I want to thank you
very, very, very much for your past support for Watershed Protection. Our native
watershed, native forested watersheds had benefited from your support. I want
to ask for your continued support in this year's budget, as I think you'll find we do
have quite a bit of community support for this, as well as the fact that our
programs are very effective in protecting our native forested watersheds. I will
give you some details in written form regarding progress that we've made with
your pass support. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES. Any questions, Anders? Alright, thank you very much.
James Coon and James will be followed by-?: He had to leave.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, he had to leave? Okay, Alex Michailidis-MR. MICHAILIDIS (from the audience): Michailidis.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --Michailidis ... will be followed by Mark Redeker.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Good evening, Council members. My name is Alex Michailidis and
I'm the Watershed Manager for the East Maui Watershed Partnership, an
employee of the Research Corporation of the University of Hawaii. I consider
myself very fortunate to have the opportunity to speak before you requesting
you-all support, you-ails is my southern background, for Maui County's
Watershed Partnerships. I'm fortunate because with past year's County support,
coupled by State support, Federal support, and funding from private agencies,
we've been able to procure necessary funding for us to continue implementing
our natural resource program that is specifically designed to protect East Maui's
primary water source and native Hawaiian rain forest. I'd like to extend my
sincere mahalos for your-ails, there I go again, support for the past two years,
enabling our projects to grow from one staff person, myself, to now we have eight
personnel, all committed to protecting East Maui's Watershed from the
devastating effects that feral animals have and the invasive plants that can
migrate into these areas that are disturbed by animal activity. During this past
year, we've hired a Public Relations Specialist, who will talk to you about the
great work that she has done, and also a Field Supervisor who brings over ten
years of experience in the natural resource protection field. We've constructed
an additional mile and a half of fence and are monitoring the native forest above
the fence line determining the effectiveness of our management actions. We've
made substantial progress and we can only continue such accomplishments with
financial support from the County. To put into like monetary perspectives, we've
got an operating budget between 400,000 and $500,000 a year. And the
$50,000 that East Maui would get of the 200,000 to all the watershed
partnerships, that's roughly 10 to 15 percent of our operating budget, and it really
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does make a difference and, and helps us out procuring additional funds. We
can use County funds for match purposes to the State, to Federal agencies. So
really County money enables us to procure a lot more funding. Three minutes?
I'll turn it over to my colleagues.
MS. LUI: Hi. Thank you again for making watershed education one of Maui's priorities.
Since the inception of the Public Relations position nine months ago, EMWP has
fostered over 500 face to face interactions with members of the community. We
do this by doing classroom presentations, taking both adults and children on rain
forest hikes at the Waikamoi Preserve, and we also hold informational tables at
community events. We've started a new website and made information about
our project available on the internet. And we'd like to continue to involve the
community in watershed protection with a volunteer program that we're currently
starting. And in the fall, we will also be holding an art contest for community
members to celebrate the native birds, bugs, and plants of our watershed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could you give us your name please?
MS. LUI: My name is Kat Lui.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. Thank you.
MR. JOKIEL: Oh, we still have time? Okay. I just, I just wanted to ... my name is
Jordan Jokiel. I'm the Field Supervisor for East Maui Watershed Partnership and
really quick I just wanted to say mahalo to all of you for continuing to support this
program because I think next to the air we breathe, water really is the most
important thing to all of our lives, whether it's for agriculture or if it's for the water
we drink. And 'cause I'm up here real quick, I just also want to say I'm not sure if
you're aware of it, but by supporting this program you're also in the process of
building community leaders. Standing behind me is Clinton Fukushima, and he
is a local boy from Kula. We got guys from Waiehu, we got local boys from
Makawao, and in the conservation community it's really nice to see some of
these people rising up through the ranks and affecting some of the decisions that
are being made here locally, protecting our native forest. Mahalo.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: How you guys doing this evening? Like he said, I'm Clinton
Fukushima, been born and raised as a Kula farmer. But as, as a Kula farmer, we
also, also know that water is also important. And so I figure I do something for
the community and work with these Maui Watershed Partnerships. Now, I'm a
field crew leader, who would've thought I'm 20 years old. But anyway with the
continuation of your support, we can also continue in saving the rain forest.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Any questions for Mark and his
crew? Thank you very much, Mark.
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MR. MICHAILIDIS (from the audience): Alex.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean Alex. I'm sorry. Mark is next. .. .(chuckle) . ..
Okay, and Mark will be followed by Susan Kim.
MR. REDEKER: Good evening. I was asked to come up by several groups and talk to
you folks about the fireweed or actually be available for questions more than
anything else. You have in front of you kind of a scary picture here. Three years
ago this picture would have a small five mile, five square mile area covered
around the Baldwin, Kokomo area. That's it. So in three years it went from 5
square miles to 96 square miles, 62,000 acres. You'll notice that most of the
Upcountry area is covered. Currently your funding, and we appreciate it and the
folks up there appreciate it, has benefited 62 different farms, ranches, and areas
that we spray. We have unfortunately kind of developed an expertise in this area
just by default more than anything else. We're, we're looking at one of the
strongest supporters, Tony over there, he's volunteered thousands of hours. The
Supply, has
other gentleman over here, Mitchell MacCluer(?) from
donated thousands of dollars in chemicals and thousands of hours as well, in
testing, in testing, in testing, and what we can do to get rid of this material. We
have come up with a treatment plan that is now kind of going out to other places
and people are starting to use it. And it is killing the seeds, which is our biggest,
been our biggest concern. I was asked to prepare this report so that you folks
would understand. One, can we stop this problem and eliminate it from Maui?
The answer to that is yes. We still can if we get going now. If we wait a couple
of years, it's gone. There's nothing we're gonna be able to do about it basically.
Number two, what's it gonna cost to solve the problem? And you'll see right
there what, what the initial cost, what the cost is gonna be. What we have done
recently is we have slowed the spread and we have learned how to stop it. We
haven't stopped the spread. We've slowed the spread. Lastly, you'll look in
there. How long is it going to take? Well, it's going to be a three to five year
period to get rid of it. So that's kind of ... there's a larger report, but these were
just excerpts that have been taken out of for your knowledge and a lot of this stuff
is very technical and you really probably don't care that much about it. But you're
trying to get two pounds of coffee out of a one pound can, and it gets down to the
nitty-gritty and that's what it's all about. You'll see in your little picture there,
there's three purple spots. Those purple spots represents spots that have
jumped up as a result of transportation of your animals or vehicles. One was at
Big Beach, one was at the Heliport where they go out to service Kahoolawe, and
one of 'em was up just below Apana's at the feed yards. So these areas were,
they popped up, they were seen, they were eradicated, and we moved out. We
moved back into our, our treatment area. There's a lot of information in here.
You can read it at your leisure. I included a card and an email. If you have any
questions, I'll be happy to answer them. If you have any questions, I'll be happy
to answer those as well tonight.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Hi, Mark. Thank you for coming. Because of the
encroachment, I mean your very first bullet talking about, and you've highlighted
the 5 square miles up to 96 square miles, which is explosive.
MR. REDEKER: It's, it's terrible.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The National Park, have they seen this as a threat to the
National Park, and can we-MR. REDEKER: Well-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --just like we did with miconia, finally get, open their eyes
and see that it's a threat to the National Park as well?
MR. REDEKER: This problem started ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... passed when the State
built the Pukalani By-Pass. So we need to understand that it came from the
State and now it has spread out to the point where it is almost literally at the
gates of the National Park. Now, we originally didn't feel that it would make it
elevation wise to that area. However, we were kind of proved wrong. Recently I
went out and evaluated a site at Ulupalakua Ranch. We felt that it would peak
out at around 5,000 feet, and well it's at 6,800 and going strong. So, I, I don't,
you know, I, I, we might be able to get them involved in it, worrying about it.
They should be worried about it 'cause it is going to affect them. They have
grass areas up there. Now the only thing is maybe their absolute coldness will
stop it. Down in ... Australia, New Zealand, it hasn't peaked above 8,000 feet.
So, I, I don't know. We might be able to, to do that. One of our largest concerns
is roads right now. The roads is moving along the road system quite, quite
quickly. But there's problems with the new chemistries that we're utilizing. If we
just go out and spray, these, these chemistries are so, so aggressive on these,
on wide leaf type plants that they can affect some of the paniC trees and other
things along the sides of the road. So we have to be very careful how we do it.
But it can be done and we can eliminate it. It's just basically, basically ... can
we get enough people involved in it. Now we, we're starting to get co-pays from
people to help lengthen it. For every 10 acres sprayed we get $10 an acre out of
the people to aid, to keep furthering the, the amount that we can spray. We tried
a lot of different things. I mean people are willing to help, but they need that, that
oomph, that little push. We're going so far as I'm using my pest control license to
buy chemicals and give to people. So that's really stretching the envelope
because I'm technically responsible for those chemicals when they utilize it. So
that's how far I've gone to try to proliferate getting this thing sprayed and killed.
We've taken it about as far as we can. Ulupalakua Ranch, I mean, they're,
they've hired a guy and they, they got a full-time guy spraying. Haleakala Ranch,
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couple full-time guys spraying. So it isn't necessarily the larger ranches are the
problems, the smaller ranches, and because of our rolling hills and small, small
ranchettes so to speak, we can't use aerial spraying like they're gearing up to do
on the Big Island. The Big Island has large ranches, flat areas, and aerial
spraying will probably work pretty well. So, we have a unique problem on Maui,
but with seed banks and other things now starting to be worrying about it our
overall agriculture is more at risk, not just the cattle or the horse industries.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAI R HOKAMA: Any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks very much for the information. Have you also
considered under the Federal Farm Bill utilizing or trying to use monies that we
would give and then be able to go and get matching funds through, let's say your
grazing or pasture land programs that they have?
MR. REDEKER: Tony's been working really hard on that, on that project. My, my
expertise is basically try, try to figure out how we can kill it, can we kill it, and how
we can kill it, and how we can work toward controlling it. Tony's been working
more along the lines of the funding and all of that. I've been trying to, you know,
get a database built for people, and, and track those people, and track the
applications, photograph the before and afters and things like that, the actual in
the field work. Tony's a little bit more knowledgeable in the actual chasing of
funding. Now he's spent hundreds, and hundreds of hours knocking on doors,
and chasing funding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The other thing would be to have you besides all the
other efforts that you're utilizing, have you considered using, sometimes in the
summertime, kids have a lot of time on their hands, like a bounty program where,
you know, if, once these things, once the seeds, you know, start spreading, I'm
really concerned about that. So, I know that in West Maui we had used, when
we were trying to get the seaweed off the beaches, a bounty. Have you
considered using any kind of program like that?
MR. REDEKER: We, we utilize ... the, the County for a while had the, had, when they
had the, the work force for a while that was left over from a different program.
We utilized them for a while, but what we found was that in the pulling of the
plants so many seeds got knocked off that we actually were about even-steven
after the first rain. So, we, you know, and even with the sheep and the goats,
putting them on a graze site to, to eat the plant is a good idea, but the problem is
they eat all the other plants and they degrade the, the pasture to the point where
it makes it easy for the plant to come back again. So, you know, there's, there's
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pluses and minuses with all of them and it's going to be a real balancing act and
a juggling act. We've tried burning it. We've tried eating it. We've tried picking
it. And frankly, you know, we've, we've come down with just a couple real minor
tweaks to it and, and we're now to a point where, yeah, we can kill it and we can
prevent it from growing using the chemistries we've got.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: How about your birds? You know, when do the birds
like-MR. REDEKER: They're moving it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, because that's another concern I have where
you-MR. REDEKER: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
another.

--eradicate it in one area and then spread it to

MR. REDEKER: Mostly, though, it's not so much the birds as it is the cattle, on the
hooves, on the fur, on the vehicles that drive in the areas, the wind, the mowing
on the side of the road, and then they move the mower down, and they put the
mower back down, and then they scatter the seeds, then they start mowing
again. So all these are all factors in moving it around. We know that the birds
are moving it, but I think that's the least of our concern. You know, the, the birds
we've identified that eat these seeds are so few in numbers. It's a very
specifically small type of a bird that it isn't really a real problem for us. It's not like
it's the mynah birds or something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. REDEKER: Any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I just want a copy of your presentation.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, we have that. Thank you.
MR. REDEKER: Yeah. I've included a card. If you have any further questions, I have
email. Thank you.
MR. DURSO (from the audience): Can I say one more thing ... (inaudible) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, why don't you talk after, afterwards.
thanks. Susan Kim. Susan will be followed by Bob Howerton.

Okay,

MS. KIM: Hi. My name is Susan Kim and I'm here tonight in support the, for the
Microenterprise Program of MEO, which help me start my business. I have a
growing life coaching practice. As a coach, I work with people in small
businesses to enhance and improve their business and their lives. By creating
clarity and developing strategies where they can actually take action, my clients
get the results that they want. So MEO Business Development Corporation has
been helpful to me by providing funding to launch and grow my business. Since
most of my services are provided virtually, either by phone or on the internet, I
needed a really strong virtual presence. MEO funding has not only enabled me
to promote myself on the web, but I've also been able to bring these services
locally to the community here on Maui through talks, and workshops, and classes
actually that I'm going to be offering at the Maui Community College during the
summer. It has also helped me to continue to develop myself personally and
professionally as I go toward my certification. I moved to Maui because of the
sense of community and the feeling of ohana here ... represented obviously
here tonight as well. But to me, the MEO really has this energy with regard to
business because they really encourage and promote small businesses and new
businesses here on the island. I believe small business is necessary really to
pioneer the new ideas as well as to foster the continued growth and development
in this economy. Small business is where dreams can really become reality, and
I think MEO helps these dreams come true through this program. Other financial
institutions are blind to the potential and they deny young businesses and small
businesses the opportunity to actually contribute their passions in this
community. I ask that you continue to fully fund the Microenterprise Program
because it is needed here on Maui. It has helped me start and grow my business
here, and I hope it continues to do so for others. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
follow Bob.

Bob Howerton.

And Brett Higgins will

MR. HOWERTON: Okay, good evening all and thank you for coming-CHAIR HOKAMA: Bob, adjust the mike.
MR. HOWERTON: Oh, okay. And most of you know me. My name is Bob Howerton.
I'm ... work with the University of Hawaii, I'm the Aquaculture Specialist for the
Sea Grant Extension Program. And I'm here to testify in support of agriculture in
general and aquaculture in particular. I want to thank you for your past support
for the aquaculture, the Maui County Aquaculture Program, and request
continued support in the next fiscal year. As most of you know, we're trying to
develop some offshore kids culture or aquaculture operations here off of Maui.
And another high priority for the County is an aquaculture park, much along the
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lines of the Kula Agriculture Park, and we're trying to identify pieces of property
to develop that now. But I wanted to thank you again for your support in the past
and hope for your continued support in the future. Is there any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have one Bob.
programs going on at NELHA in Kona?

Are you familiar with the, the

MR. HOWERTON: Yes, I, I haven't been out there for a couple of years, but I am
familiar with that place.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is, is there any interest on your part in looking to
develop something, something similar here on Maui?
MR. HOWERTON: One of the, the challenges we have here is that we can't do the
types of programs they have over there because they've got that deep water
pipe. They pull up that water directly offshore which is about 3,000 feet deep.
There's only a couple places in Maui County that we may able to do something
like that. I think one of 'em is over in Kihei side, if I'm not mistaken, and the other
is over on the east side. So to do something along that large of a scale would be
somewhat difficult, but if we can find a particular land base where we can dig a
seawater well, we can do some programs like that, developing marine shrimp
and marine fin fish on shore as well.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You are, you're familiar within seawater wells?
MR. HOWERTON: Yes, there's a number of places that have seawater wells.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. HOWERTON: You just have to drill down below the freshwater lands.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right
MR. HOWERTON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So I wasn't so off in my dream. Thank you.
MR. HOWERTON: Thank you very much. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Where is he? Brett Higgins.
Harold will be followed by Karen Peterson.

Harold Keyser.

And

MR. KEYSER: Okay. Well, thank you and good evening Council members. It's a
pleasure to be here and also on behalf of the college I'd like to say how much we
appreciate your dedicated efforts in this community input process. As you may,
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may know, the college, in particular the, the agriculture experiment station
operates with a combination of, of Federal, State, and local funding. Most of our
State funding is for our salaries, our facilities, electricity, facilities here, and in
Molokai. We have some Federal funding that we get for particular projects, such
as the long-term Federal floriculture development of protea. We're fairly certain
that this year with our Federal programs we're gonna get some money for
helping the Maui Cattle Company and Maui Land & Pine convert some of their
old pineapple soils to sustainable pasture for the Maui Cattle Company over on
the west side. And then for our priority programs, we really do depend pretty
much on the, the County for those and I would just like to briefly go over a few
that we would like to see funded this year or that we hope to. And also we'd like
to express, of course, our thanks for all the past support.
This year through the Office of Economic Development and your support, we, we
had a grant for world wide collection of tropical flowers, which we're going to
bring back, evaluate, and this is to enhance the tropical flower industry, tropical
foliage and flower industry here in MauL Some of the projects that we would like
to finish this year. That there's two of them that have been in long-term
development of, from our plant breeder at the Kula Station, John Cho. He's, he's
worked for several years on developing multiple resistant tomato lines. Years
ago the spotted wilt virus pretty much devastated tomatoes, the tomato
production in Maui County. But he has now, through many crosses, spotted wilt
virus resistance, along with nematode resistance, and we're looking for the final
stages of evaluating those crosses with chefs, and with the farmers, and
producing enough seed to get 'em in commercial production. John's also
developed leaf blight resistant taro hybrids, which are now being adopted by the
biggest taro poi producers in Kauai, and we are planning to do some on farm
trials for the biggest producers here in Waihee and Keanae. And we're looking
for some small support to do that. We feel that there's fairly significant potential
on Maui for import replacement of the, the leafy vegetables, especially lettuce.
We only produce about 10 percent of that in the State, and we think there's ...
we're looking for a feasibility study to look at ... a centralized packaging and
processing facility here. 'Cause we think in a, in a collective format with the
producers that this could really increase our competitiveness and enable that
industry to advance.
We also aim for the potted, for the nursery crops, container crops. We would like
to develop some nutrient management systems, which has been modeled after
programs overseas with the Dutch and
Islands, which produce a lot of
the same tropical flowers we do, but with tenfold greater production mostly
because of nutrient management. And we would like to follow this type of model
with training and research programs.
And finally, we would also like to take on the successful model that we've
developed for a long-term protea research through our station, and apply that to
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the tropical flower and foliage industries. And this will take some small amount of
infrastructure change of the Kula Station. And that's all. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any questions for Dr. Keyser? Thank you very much
for being here. Karen Peterson will be followed by Brett Higgins.
MS. PETERSON: Okay, I have a handout there. Thank you for coming, Council
members. It's good to see you here, and I really appreciate being able to come
here and say what I have to say. My name is Karen Peterson and I'm the
Executive Director of Giving Back, which is a new, pretty new non-profit that has
programs for senior citizens to give back to the community. And the major
program we have, and I've included some pictures in there, which I especially
want you to look at, is called the "Brain Gym Intergenerational Mentoring
Program". And I want to thank you for supporting this program for three years so
far, and I'd like you to continue. And the program is, is really growing. It's, I
would consider it pretty successful and last year in, in the grant we said we were
gonna reach 74 youth, and we actually reached 113. So, we really passed our
goal. And the reason is really because so many senior citizens want to take the
training and be involved in the program. So, I really almost had to double my
training last year and I even have a waiting list now for people who want to take
the training and be in the program. And, I, I planted in the next couple of years
double even that 113 and we'd be up to 226 kids. And I wanted to start reaching
the high school kids, so with the Board we thought of a new kind of way to reach
them. So, this is what we're thinking of and we've talked to the future teachers of
Baldwin High School. And what we're gonna do is have some of those students,
possibility start out with five, and they're going to come and be mentors to, in
Wailuku and Lihikai, at those schools, and then after they all mentor with the
seniors citizens, then each senior citizen will pick one of those high schools kids
to be a mentor of. So then the high school kids will be mentors and be, be
mentees [sic]. Because the way that the program works is I bring in a team of
senior citizens, and then let's say the high school kids join in and all the kids
come out, and then they work on them, you know, one on one and then those
kids leave and the new bunch of kids come out. And then after that I have like a
support group where the, all the mentors get instant feedback, you know, like
well how did it go, what did you need, you know, things like that. So, they don't
just leave the site and wonder well, how did I do. So, and at this time, the
seniors are also bonding with each other, and becoming friends, and feeling
really part of the community. And it's at that time that I'm gonna have the high
school kids as part of that and then they will be paired off and mentored .... Oh,
my nail. .. ,(chuckle), ,. So that's just kind of a new way that I thought would be
good to reach the high school kids, rather than just having the program come in
that they could actually get self-esteem by being mentors. And this is really, you
know, I'm listing this under youth programs, but you, you have to see that the
senior citizens are getting just as much from the program. It's really a win-win for
them, and all their evaluations and journals say the same thing. And I have done
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some standardized, pre-impulse testing with an independent researcher on the
kids, and they have really improved in reading and behavior and self-esteem.
And one of the main things that, that the teachers say that the kids now do, or
they have, they have the ability focus, which is really an important thing. And,
it's, the standardized testing show that hyperactive behavior was decreased and
ADHD behavior was decreased. So, I think that's another thing of concern in the
schools. So, and one, this will be the last thing, it's actually the Brain Gym
International Organization has really been looking at this program because no
one else has used it with senior citizens. So, I'm gonna be going to their
conference in the summer and presenting it as a course to other Brain, Brain
Gym instructors that they might possibly, you know, do this in their community.
And I'm gonna be writing a manual that could be for sale, that will be for sale at
this, you know, convention and for my senior citizens here in the training, which
could be a fund raiser. We're planning on that being a fund raiser, too. So
anyway I wanna just thank you and hope that you continue to support this
program with something as time honored as senior citizens and children
together. It's just such a natural thing and if you could see their faces, you'd
know that it was just happening. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Karen, how were you funded in the past?
MS. PETERSON: Well, the County has funded me in the last three years. And I've
also gotten some funding from foundations. I know what I really wanted to say,
though. Thanks for asking that question. This year what I'm really going to need
is an assistant. And I've handpicked one of the senior citizen mentors who really
is gung ho about the program, plus has a lot of experience getting other money,
and fund raising, and in business, and things like that. So, she wants to be the
assistant because I really can't expand the program at all unless I've got
somebody to watch what's happening with what, what I've already set up. So
that's how I've been funded ... (inaudible) ... mostly the County-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It was the Community Partnership Grant?
MS. PETERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It was. Okay, under the youth programs?
MS. PETERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. PETERSON: Community Partnership Grants under the youth programs.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
GRC?

So you've already submitted an application to the
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MS. PETERSON: Well, I'm, it's going to be ready tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's due tomorrow, right?
MS. PETERSON: No, it's due on Thursday, but 1'11-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, this Thursday. Okay.
MS. PETERSON: --even be ready a day ahead. And I've been working on it solid for
the last month.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. PETERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thanks, Karen.
MS. PETERSON: Thanks a lot.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Brett Higgins will be followed by Greg Kinholt.
MR. HIGGINS: Aloha. My name is Brett Higgins and I'm here on behalf of Maui
Economic Opportunity. I, I'm a small business owner and I've been filming
underwater, working in underwater video production for about four years now. In
the beginning of 2003, through word of mouth, some people that I know told me
about Maui Economic Opportunity, and I was looking to start my own business to
break away from, the working for someone else, and to go into business for
myself. And I approached them with my idea, which is not a new idea. Maui
being a very unique place that you can get away with doing things like
underwater video production, and actually prosper at it 'cause of our abundant
marine life, and the tourist industry. I approached them, and they loved my idea,
and I had a lot of experience at that point, and they liked my work, and they
funded me to start my own business. They bought my, my computers and a lot
of the expensive equipment that's needed to do video production. And it was a
two year loan and I was very successful as ... amazing year. I was able to pay
my loan off, loan off in half the time, in one year, instead of two. And now they
have recently . . . are aSSisting me in expanding my business so that I can
actually hire employees, and keep the boats covered, two different boats for
seven days a week. And I'm also having the opportunity to -- I have, through
popular demand, people really like my work of the underwater videos I've made,
and movies about Maui, and the marine life, and the Hawaiian humpback whales,
and whatnot. They've actually encouraged me to make my work available to the
general public. So, I'm actually in the process of getting copyrights for music and
I'll be putting my things in stores. And really none of this wouldn't be possible if
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hadn't been for MEO. I didn't have good enough credits to go to a bank, and
they helped me establish my credit. And they, they just liked my idea, and they
trusted me, and I was just able to put my car down as collateral, and I, I can't say
how grateful I am to them, and I think that their program is absolutely wonderful.
I've never seen anything like it and just really makes me appreciate being a
member of this community, and makes me want to live up to it. So, I just wanted
to say that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Greg Kin, Kinholt.
MR. KINHOLT (from the audience): Got it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Got it? Okay, and then Kerry Cullins will be next.
MR. KINHOLT: Thank you, Council members. I represent the Maui Humane Society
on the Board as a volunteer. I moved to Maui about eight months ago. I've
invested about a thousand hours of my time to try and help the animals. So, I'm
here speaking for them if you will. And our mission statement, and this is also a
thank you to the Maui Economic Opportunity, as of last weekend we spent the
weekend on one element and revamping the mission statement. And this will be
revised in one more week. But roughly we are enhancing, and serving, and
educating our community by preventing cruelty, promoting compassion,
protecting the public, and saving animals. There's various programs that we
provide as the Maui Humane Society, one of those being funded by the Maui
County and the rest being supported by the community, on private donations
essentially, and various fund raisers.
The first element would be the animal rescue and animal management, which is
in the budget. And we appreciate what we've had in the past and ask for that
continued support because it's a vital part of our community. I drive this road
every morning, twice a day, and I've estimated about 60 animals that I've seen
dead on the highway, and that's one of the services that the Maui Human Society
provides that nobody else probably would want to do. It's not a glamorous job.
There's four animal rescue staff that provide that service, and it's a continual.
We get calls, several calls a day, for that service alone.
And that leads me to the next more important element I think that the community
needs is humane education and expanding those programs. We take this pro,
program into the schools, dog prevention ... bite prevention, and also the
importance of treating our animals with respect. And I will speak on a personal
note that in the five states I've lived, it surprises me that Hawaii, Maui in
particular, we haven't done a good job with the way we treat animals. Most of
the animals, pets in particular, dogs and cats that you see out there running,
they're running loose a lot of times, they're tied to trees, they're basically getting
the basics of water, food, and maybe a little attention. Not to many people out
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there really walking and exercising and caring which surprises me. And, and I, I
think we can change that. I, I have a lot of hope that we can change that and the
first step is education and a commitment from several people. And I've talked to
about 500 business owners over the last five to eight months in fund raising
efforts and there's a lot of support for the Maui Humane Society. Everybody
wants it to be successful. We have just turned a profit over the last six years just
recently, and thanks to your support that's possible to take care of the animal
rescue. And thanks to the community for supporting us and all the donations and
the fund raising events that we try and provide to try and help the animals. So
thanks for your support and I appreciate the opportunity to talk to you tonight.
Any questions at all?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
much for being here.

Okay.

Members, any questions?

Thank you very

MR. KINHOLT: Thank you very much. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Kerry Cullins will be followed by Ben Massenburg.
MS. CULLINS: Aloha, Council members. My name is Kerry Cullins and I'm here to
testify in support of MEO's Microenterprise Program. I own a small business on
MauL It's just a little bookkeeping company, and it's been growing quickly in the
last few years, and it's real exciting to me. But my, I'm young and my credit isn't
built up so banks won't give me money. And MEO has, and in the past they've
given me money, and it's helped me to grow my business. And now I'm at a
pOint where my business is really expanding, and I have no one to go to other
than MEO for a business expansion loan, and they're there for me, they're
supporting me, they're helping me through the process of getting a bigger loan,
and I just think they're a wonderful addition to the community. They, you know,
they look at my business plan, they look at how my business is doing, not just at
my credit score, which is what the banks look at. And, you know, they, they're
just great. There's no other program like it. There's nowhere else someone like
myself, you know, I mean I'm a young, single mother, who I need to support my
children, living on Maui, and MEO has really made that possible for me basically.
So, I just want you guys to give as much money as you can to them because
they're great, and they help out a lot of small businesses. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
Thank you.
Questions?
Thank you.
Ben
Massenburg. And Ben is the last person signed up to testify. If there is anyone
else who would like to testify, please come forward and sign up.
MR. MASSENBURG: Anyway, I'm Dr. Ben Massenburg. I've been on Maui 14 years.
I'm an emergency physician and I came here with one point, but during the
discussion I've decided to jump in and add two more. One, the first two I'm going
to bring up are very hot. One, the helicopter. I've worked here before we had
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the helicopter, when we had the helicopter, and now that we don't. And I would
like to suggest that the City Council strongly follow the model that Mercy offered
the County. And I'm not convinced that what I hear the discussion is really more
than a band aid on a heart attack. I mean obviously in treating a disease you
want to give the right medicine, and you have to, have to have the right cure,
have to have the right operation. And from what I heard there are private
companies that are willing to come in. And I would like to think that these
avenues would be explored before we make a decision and maybe build another
one-lane road up Haleakala.
Second point is I think the medical concerns for Maui should be dealt with by the
people of Maui. And I think it's unfortunate that we're still tied to a State system,
and that we are the older, more mature child in this system, and that the people
of Maui are burdened with supporting some of the younger children. I mean I
look at the situation where the, the hospital is, is if you have a child, you have
seven children. The oldest child grows up and is successful. You say sorry you
have to stay here and bring the money back to me until the rest of your children
grow up. I think Maui is a wonderful County to practice medicine in and offers a
lot of unique situations that can't be modeled after what's going on in the rest of
the country or on the mainland, because of the type of people that we have here,
what is expected, and actually we have a very financially stable population.
Everybody's fairly well insured. I think medicine is going forward. It's not a
business that a lot of people want to be in, but I think you would find that here is
a place that a lot of people would like to practice medicine. One of the nurses
who just came to Maui, and had worked in Vail, when she got to Maui she
expected to see a Four Seasons type resort hospital, and was surprised to see
that we're still burdened or we still have a, a State system. I mean I've always
had this, this dream that if somehow the, the hospital could be turned over to the
County and run by the County. I mean I think eventually, in the, in the future, that
we will have a hospital like that, and then they will be competing with us, but until,
until decisions are being made on Maui for Maui, we're gonna, it's gonna be
politicized by interest outside of our County.
But the reason that I came here is, is the tennis courts. I've been, been involved
in youth sports-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Boy, that was a switch. Wow.

?: He's all work and no play makes Jack a dull boy. So that's why we're on (inaudible).
MR. MASSENBURG: No, the, the reason that I, I came was to support the tennis
courts. My wife predominantly has been involved in youth sports, and currently
we're coaching the, the tennis team at King K. And I think that Upcountry is
underserved relative to the rest of the County in numbers of tennis courts. I
mean obviously we have some at Eddie Tam, and we have two here, and others
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in Pukalani. But we're not able to build the kind of youth experience like they
have at Wells or they have at Lahaina until we have a collection of courts where
we can, where we can run, run a group of kids. My, my youngest daughter
stepped out. And she'll be in high school in two years, and so the kind of
programs that they're running at Wells, and has run in Lahaina in the past, we
just don't have the facilities to do this. Currently these two courts and the two
courts at Eddie Tam are being reserved in the afternoons for the private school,
for their high school team to play on. So it's really tough to, to organize tennis as
a group, even in the adult leagues without ideally four courts and six courts
would, would be, would be the best. So I'd like to encourage you guys to
continue to pursue the development of additional courts here on Maui. I'd like to
offer myself if you ever want to call or discuss any of these issues. I'd make
myself available to you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, doctor.

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ••
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Okay last call.
something? Okay, seeing none. Mr. Chair.

Anybody want to say

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you Kula for being here this evening and sharing with
us your requests, as well as comments. The Members will do their best. I can
tell you now that we having, are having more requests than we have funds. And
that is the reality of where we sit. So, there will be no's to some requests. It's
unfortunate but that's the reality of where we sit and the resources available. We
thank you for your comments. We will do the best job possible, and of course,
because we represent all of you, we ask that you continue to participate with us,
continue to testify, and continue to share with us your priorities. Thank you very
much for being here this evening. Meeting adjourned .... (gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: WN)
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:32 p.m.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 23, 2004 (Kula)

APPROVED:

G. IKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:040323-2

Transcribed by: Delfey A. Fernandez

CERTIFICATE

I, Jan M. Inouye-Ogata, hereby certify that the foregoing represents to the
best of my ability, a true and correct transcript of the proceedings. I further certify that I am not
in any way concerned with the cause.
DATED this 22nd day of April, 2004, in Kahului, Hawaii

Jan M. Inouye-Ogata

